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CHATRMAN MC CARTHY: This meeting of the State

Lands Commission will commence.
Any minutes from the last meeting to be

confirmed® Urnanimously confirmed.

EXECUTIVE OPFICE" | DEDRICK: Well, we have

coafirmation of the minutes of the meeting of September

I8

23rd, Mr. Chairman.

CHATIRMAN MC CARTHY: All right. That's fine.

1, 2? and 3 were pulled.

-EXECUTIVE OFFICER DEDRICK: No consent calendar,
but --

CHATRMAN MC CARTHY: 42 o

EXECUTIVE OFFICER DEDRICK: No. 4. This is an
éppliéation from thie Texaco chporation.toAremove~pwou‘
platforms in the Santa Barbara Channel, Platforms Heleh
and Herman. Their original proposal was to ~- in
cooperation with the Departmenf of Fish & Game -~ put
arﬁificial reefs in Santa Monica Bay. - » S
They have now withdrawn the reef preposal and =
will be aban“onlnw the platfcrms on -- by salvage on land.
There is no protest in thls natter that we know of.
CHAFRMAN MC CARTHY:

Any questzons:’ Your

' Five?

_ }, ;
., g
L v

;A.m ,l

Thg,consént calendar? . |
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EXECUTIVE OFFICER DEDRICK: Thankzrpu‘.. And
this item, of course, is the geophysical program item. -
Mr. Chairman, since the last méeting, several'qﬁestiOns
were r@ised at the last meeting. ‘
to Prepare responses to them and to clarify'the pﬁbgram,
as proposed by the staff, in light of those questions.
Staff, as you know, is-recommending that an
env1ronmental impact report be done on the ﬁ1gh ensrg§

1nstruments that are used Eor geophysical and geoselsmie

4,/’

surveys.

2As ﬁxhibit B attached to the permit, which is
patt of the calendar item -- &za I don't know what page
that 1s.v

Do you have a page number on this? =~- is a

summary of the staff recommendatlon. o
’ The permit would limit the use of geophysxoal
sur&ey equipment to those whxch have no more than twea
kilojoules of energy input. A kilojoule is defined in
Webster as under the two headings, "kilo," which is a
prefix meaning one thousani, and "joule,” which is a
< work -~ a unxt of work in the metric system. It is
equal ‘to 10 to the 7th ergs. Ergs are really little. But
more to the p01nt, it's about three:qnarters, somewhat
un&er'tﬁsee—quértefs‘of‘a féot-pound. So, that's kind of
more into English. K ‘ ~ »

The energy input is a regulatable item.

And we have done ourvbesé‘

ﬁeéeaﬁﬁfg_
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\limit -~ we can examine the instruments and show that they

cannot exceed two kiléjoules of energy input.

That means that their energy output would be
less than two kilojoules because of the conservationAof
enerqgy, which is aiphysical law.

‘xwe also clarifis< that the eguipment now in
uge<that can be used is listed under-Item 2.  In all
cases, these are equiément that are very low inpﬁt and |

which are categorized on their energy input again. So

" that. the two kilojoule energy input standard, rather than

the energy output that is used by the industry for the
high energy de#ices, is-@he appropriate measure by which
to -~ to identify these things.

Finally, as Item 3, we would recommend that

you specifically prohibit the use of air or water

coupression devices until an EIR is completed.

If there are any other quéstions, ;fd be happy
to answer them. Have I -- I do have some moéé questions
of yours to answer.

You asked -- the Commission asked whether or not
it is true that there are requir-ments on the - on power
plants on tne coast that would require this kind of
hig;,enéigy survey, the sort that we would not be

atthorizing. That is true. In at least the case of

Diablo Canyon, it is a condition of their operating permit

=N
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(1 that they do deep seismic studies in order to identify

seismic faults at depth.

L

In the Alquist-Priolo Act case’ that is also
a requirerent, but that is very seldom exercised offshore.

Primarily, Alquist-Priolo deals with onshore faults.

o

The sewer outfall construcéion,in the main, the
types of Surveyiequipment which the staff recommends

you authorize --- which are Item 2 in Exhibit B, the

© O N O 0 & W

mini-sparkers, et cetera -- limited to two kilojoules of

—

i
10 energy input would, in the main, be adequate to handle . ‘@
44 | such things as required sewer outfall cénétiuction (sic). ’
12 | So that's my basic report of additional ‘ | ;
13 information from the last meéting. |

14 CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: Any questions?w All right.

15 Miss Kirwan, would you like to start the testimony,r

16 please? N : g

BN

17 MS. KIRWAN: Governor, Cﬂmmissijm members, iy }
%’ ;57’ name is B. J. Kirwan. IX'w an attorney with McClintock,
f 19 Kirwan in Los Angeles. I came heré.from Los Angeles
%l- 20 - today. And after all the earthquakes that we've sufferad
; 21 in the last few days, I'd sure hope vou'd be in favor of
E 22 | seismic exploration.
i. 23 I am here reprresenting 13 companies, including

24 | GSI, Meridian Oceén Systems, Harding Lawson, Exxon, and

25 | Arco. I'm defending them in a lawsuit filed by\some*w
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Santa Barbara commercial fishermen, some of whom you heard
from at the last hearing, who are against geophyeical
surveys, because they say the survﬁys affect their
ability to make a profit fishing. B

~
And I am sympathetic to their prof \m although

I, for one, don't see it as an environmental problem. My
clients perform many diverse surveys for as_many diverse
perposes in the ocean, some for:40"years or more. And the

main areas they have in common is that they egi*f*eperate
witﬁout permits from you.

;( Three years agc, we were in a similar 51tuation.
Thﬂre wasn't a lawsuit then, but we were concerned that
the Cemmission would refuse tu renew permiits on grounds.
that an EIR or some mrher kind of environmental compliance

' ﬁ%ﬁ reguired.

And, Governor McCarthy, I remember meeting with

ycu in ios Angeles three yoars ago. And you gave us a

. concrete useful proposal. You said, "Organize a

comsiittee. Start meeting with the fishermen, Start
working with them, and try to respond to their claims."
aAnd we have tried to do that. And we've learned I
a lot. And there's bean a lot of work which has been
done since that time. And mv cliests are certainly willing{?;ﬁf

to spend a lot more time and more money iu ﬁﬁx& effort to

learn more.

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION
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But in my opinion -- and I'll éiglain a little
bit more on this in a minute -- the public will éét a iot
more out of this -- this cooperati&e effort than if an EIR
is required by you. =2 ‘ |

I've spent a considerable amount of time iﬁ'the ’
last month trying to convince your staff, and my clieagg:L
have met with some of you, in an effort:to get your -
agreement to renew these permits, because I don't believe
that the agency process works best by confrohtation. And
I was really dismayed at the hearing on September 23rd,
because it was clear to me that most of the oppanépts to
the permits are opposing oil development in general under
all circumstances, and it has nothing to do with O
geophysical survey effects. And -- but I know that yoﬁﬂ\
all have open minds and that yoﬁ'll listen to the factuai
and the legal argquments today why, in our opinidnﬁ a/bermit
should issue. - B | ]
‘ As you know, before recei;ing testimony at the
i&St ﬁearing, Governor McCarthy said that because the
staff report wasn't made available before the ﬁq§ring,
the Commission would hold this further hearing today.. And
1 ju;t assumed that the Commissiéin would not decide the
permit issues wuntil they finiskéa hearing the matter.

Ané 8o, uniike those qpposed to :he permite,
I'AEGn't ingist on speaking then. And many of the other‘
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peoplérwho are hopeful permittees didn't insist on
speaking then.

And over my objections at the end of two and
a haif hours of testimony byfthé -- those opposed to the
permits’and an hour of testimony -- testimony by those
in favor of the permits, all of a sudden there was a
mction that was moved, seconded, and voted unanimously
by the two Commissioners here fd deny all pending |
geophysical survey permits.

And I wrote you all a letter aSking for
reconsideration of that decision. And I'm here today to
do it in person and to give you the reasons why.

One of the reasons is we believe that the

action taken by the Commission at the last hearing violates

the Public Resources Code. As you know, that law requires
the Commission to approve or reject permit applications
within six months, within 180 days of submissioﬁ. a

And similarly, we have something of California =--
of course, Gévernor McCarthy, you're well aware of this
one -- the Pexmit Streamlining Act, ‘'cause I know you
partieipated in it. | &

' And the purpose of these laws, of course} is to
prevent delays without cause by any agency in the
processing of permits. Ard I believe héxe that all the

“ 5

permits‘ﬁere denie~ without regard to the merits, solely

Ne)
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to avoid their being granted by operation of law. And
in denying the permits without prejudice and iﬁviting
resubmission of the same applications, the Commissidn kas
been motivated sclely by the desire to obtain an
additional six months to revisit these applicationsur

Denial of the permits on September 23rd was
'particula:ly troublesome to me, because many of the permit
applications have actually been pending before the
Commission for 16 months already.

You will hear frém Mr. Tom Morneau éf Exxon,
for example, who I believe will give you a chronolegy
of his permit appli;ations from his company. And it's
similar to many of the otherrccmpanles who have permits
before you. It's a series of -- of extensions with-
drawals, requests for resubmitﬁals that go on and on and
on by the Commission staff. : i

So, ,‘a/v,f_f;;%bker of these companies have been |
waiting since éérly 1986 for the Commissibn to decide
whether to renew permits that they've been operating
under for many years. And the denial on September 23rd

placed all these applications on a new six- to twelve-

moiith time ciock for action, which could mean that thes([k/
permits are before you for 28 months before they're =~ .

‘actually acted upon.

Let me now move just very briefly to CEQA, the\

et
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_]the law in the area. Because, of course, it's the law

‘include an exemption for information collecting -- ~

California Env1ronmenta1 Quality Act, which is used as fhe
basis for saying that these permits should be denled. ‘

i'm not going to read my written remarks that
I wrote to you a few weeks ago, but I do want to summarize
and. no; anti-oil rhetoric which should govern and GUldP i
your decision today.

Very simply, geophysical reseefch survey permits
ave caeegorically exampt under CEQA and, in my opinionm,
because of this, the»Commission doesn't have a reascn to
prepare an EIR. /Whlle CEQA gene*ally requires agencies
such as your Commlsszon to evaluate the environmental
impacts of proposed projects bafore issuing permits,
the Legislature, of course, has exempted certain ciesges
of projects from EIR regquirements.

And these are classes which the Secretary of

Resources has specifically’determined don't have a »fi

significant effect on the environment. Class 6
exemptions consist of data coliection and rsource
evaluation activities which do not result in a series
or maﬁor disturbance (sic) to environmental resources.
CEQA guidelines are binding or the Commission
of course. And you've mirrored them.wheﬁ; in 1981, the

Commission adopted its own categorical xemptipns, which

S
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‘collection,specitically for collection of information
for surface or underwater biological, geological,

geophysical, cultural, and geochemical surveys where

&5’,“ N -

minimal or no disturbance of the land surface results.
We looked at the legislative history to see if :

there was anything different then, as to hhy this j

Commission adopted geophysical sﬁrveys as categorically . %

exempt activities under CEQA. And the'statement of

0w o0 N o w

reasons which accompanied the proposed regﬁlations states o
10 that the Commission was tailoring the Qeneral provisions

11 of the CEQA guidelines, the Class 6 exemétion, to the ' 4

12 Commission's own pesnitted activities.

FRE So, the way I look at it is that you have a
L ‘ 14 specific and affirmative act by this Commission, which - 1
15 says, geophysical survey activities are exempt. And I ¥

16 assume that the reason why they were exempted was because
ﬂ’ 7 17 at that point in time, in 1981, there’d alréady been over
- 18 30 yéars of geophysical activities which had shown no

19 environmental effect.

. 20 So, what's the legal effect of the adeption of
| 21 this categorical exemption? CEQA gquidelines say that

: 22} if an activity falls within an exempt class}rthe agency
F; 23 may not prepare an EIR, except under thr2e very narrow
% 2& circumstances, none of which apply here. | -
g 25 .Only one of the possible exceptions to the

@
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exemption was even discussed by yéur legai staff. BPBut
since they didn't mention it in the staff report, I won't [
spend any more of your time talking about it here. |

But, jin summary, the categorical exemption
provision clearly applies to the 19 applications which
are befére you. And the exceptions to the categorical
exemption do not. )

So, in my opinion, the Commission is not -
required ¢cc and shouid not prepare an EIR. The staff
report says that an EIR is then required because of
public éaatrdversy. But CEQA says that the existence ofk
public controversy over environmental effects of a
project shall nct require preparation of an EIR. 2And
there's nothing in CEQA gi th> CEQA guidelines'whivh
directs that the existén;e of'any public controversy
would affect a categorical exemption which has been
formally adopted by this Commission.

The CEQA guideiihes do provide that in margiﬂal
cases where an agency can't determine whether there is
substantial evidence of adverse environmental effacts,

public controversy may be germane to the decision whether

"~ to prepare an EIR or a negative declaration.

But that's only if the contruversy relates
to the environmental effects of a proposed activity. Anrd,

in my opinion, when you heard the testimony on September

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION
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‘based on its economic effect.

controversy ~- and you heard a lot of it, of course, on
;September 23rd -- is irrelevahé to whether an EIR is

_required ir this case.

Y

12

Y P - !

..\
\\
N

23r&;,you hadftwo controversies, but neither of them were
environmental. |
The most vocal of th¢ two was whether the
Commission should even allow offshore 0il development.
Bqt that's not before you when you're considering whetherf
to allow these geophysical survey Qérmits. : j‘ : «
The second ccntroversy, which people sure spent
a lot of time about -- talking about on September 23rd
concerned the claims that geophysical surveys reduce
fish takes. And even -- I'm not here -- I'm just a lawyer.
I'm not here to discuss all the scientific meritstor
demerits. You'll hear more about that frem othexr people.
So even if you drop the discussion or the debate
over whether there is any scientific evidence, there is
no environmental issue. It's an economic issue. And

CEQA doesn't require environmental review of a project o i

7his is also in the CEQA guidelines, which say 3
that an economic change shall not be considered a

significant effect on the environment. So public B

And I think it's also important that your cim

staff in 1984 advised you that the public controversy ¢ ; f%
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which existed then -- which the same is before you today —

it's whether oil develbpment should be allowed, didn't

- require preparation of an EIR.

A new point I'd like to make to you is that
the time is lony past since the Commission should have
been deciding whether to prepare an EIR. I already

discussed with you the deadlines in the Permit

'streamlining Act and the Public Resources Codé, which

created the Commission.
There are also deadlines in CENA. 2and there's
a provision in the Public Resources Code that an agency,

such as the Commission, must decide whether an EIR or a

negative declaration is required within 30 days from the

date ar application is accepted 1as compiete.

So, the only delay allowed by law is a 15-day

“extension which all the parties agree to. Just as with the

Permit Streamlining Act, the CLIQA deadlines are intended
to ensure that a» applicant aoesn‘t sit forewar in a state
of limbo, but rather that review of his application will
proceed in a timely fashion.

So, according to CEQA, if an EIR or even a
negative declaratinn wus required before renewal of
geophysical permits, that decision should havé taken
place in June of 1986, not now. And if it had taken place

in June of 1986, there would have been plenty of time to

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION
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with original research. -

14

prepare any documents thhout a hiatus of what we're now -

looklng at, which will be about a year, in permitting

41
£

activ1t1es.
80, to decide not to -- now to pPrepare an EIR,
in my opinion, is unlawful. But it's also reaiiy unfair

to the applicants.

Let me now just -- I'm almost cone <- reviaw with

you a practzcal question. What wi%%”?ou get out of an
EIR? All the testimony that we heard from the proponents

of an E1R said that more needs to be known, and that more

Studies need to be undertaken. * ) i |

But please be aware, CEQA has nothing to do
It doesn't require originaly
research, and it won't accomplish this goal. 7The purpose
of CEQA is to gather existing scientific knowledge and to
use it to evaluate the envircnmental impact of a proposai.
’ Studies to understand the effnct, if any, of |
geophy31ca1 surveys on sea urchin divers and on shellf;sh

won't be done for an EIR. To the contrary, to deny thene

permits, the Commission will prevent seismic geohazards Sy

and infrastructural integrity research reqi [red by State

asid Federal law toc protect the public and public

|  resources.

And I understand, toc, that the companies, which

in the past have funded these receut studies which you, of |

{
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course, suggested, they've =pent over $600,000 to date

- in the last few years doing these studies. And they don't

have the same incentive to continue to make available
funds in the future if they doa't have permitted “

So, we've just seen what an EIR won’t dc. What
will it do? Most obviously, it will stop gecphysical

research work for about a year. and it won't only stop

- oil-development related work, but you'll hear from other

people whc are testifying today that it'll stop some / ﬁi»

df}ﬁging and harbor work, seismic safety work, and the

like.

S

Now, some companies who've applied for permita
won't be greatlyv affected if you deny them‘for a year,
but others will. And I received a 1étter from Palagos,
for example, who couldn't be here, and anoth r gentleman
will be reading it. But basically, Palagos;, as one
conpany, says it doesn't know if it'il survive,

So that'll be an impact, of course, of yéur
activities. For -- I guess my conclusion is{for'all the“
reasons I've just discussed, which I believe are legal
ones, factual ones, and fundamental faifness, I'm
requesting that you reconsider the action taken 2t the

last hearing on September 23rd, and that you appxove thq

permits which would then be before you again, based on a

CAIN - % e i
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categorical exemption for CEQA.

I appreciate your ligtening to my comment.s.

CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: Thank you very much.

The central question posed by Miss kirwan is
whether or not recent studies haQe adduced evidence that
have prompted legal counsel to this Commission -- our own
counsel, Mr, Hight,Aand the Attainey/General's Office,

Mr. Stevens and his colleagues ~- to ddvise the membefsAof |

this Commission that an EIR is required, scope yet to be

- determined.

I'd like to call on Mr. Hight and Mr. Stevens

. to address that point.-

MR. HIGHT: Yes, Mr. Chairman. It is the
position of the Lands Commission's staff that the Public
Resources Code, specifically Section 21100, providés that

State Boards, Agencies, and Commissions shall prepaié’cr

cause to be prepared by contract and certify the complst&on 

of an environmental impact report on any project they
propose to carry ocut or approve which -- and I

emphasize -~ "may" have a significant. effect upon the

~environment. That's in the Public Resources Code.

The CEQA guidelines, which are in the

California Administrative Code, then go on to say that if

the lead agercy finds there is substantial evidence in the |-

record that a project may have a significant effect on the }

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION
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1 gnvirdnment, the lead agency shall prep‘are an environmewéal‘r' .
2 impact report. »
3 It is our position that these two se‘cti;né ‘ : 3
4 supersede the p:;avisioné in the cﬁmission‘s Aéministr&ﬁivé_ o i
f‘. 5 ‘Regulations, which state that geophysical is a catego;ical :
‘ '8 e.temptj.on. And the reason for that iéf, the new studies B g
: 7 which lead our staff to believe that substantial impact ’i
\E 8 may occur. \ . 1
{ 9 The studies, while arguably inc‘onclusive, lead
z 10 | to that result. And we believe there's virtually little -
e 1 option for the Commission. '
| 12 - , CHAIRMAN Mo CARTHX : Which studi.e»s are you
t; 13 referring to? |
i. 14 MR. HIGHT: I'm referting to the Mineral
| 15 | Management studies and the sf_udy in which the ;?Pmission
16 was a party through the -- it was a committee ste::dy of the

® 17 Commission, fishing study, and the o0il industry which
18 | studied eggs and larvae. And both of those studies

19 we believe concluded or can’ be read to conclude i:ha:t ’

,. 20 there is potential for ha.rm to eggs and larvae la,nd

21 | dispersal of fish. , o

3 23 ' CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: All right. Mr. Jan |

% s 23 | Stevens of the Attorney General's-Office, would you Vlfk" 7/ 3
a " 26| to comment at this point? ¥
7 g8 ' MR. STEVENS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and m’?
® - : ' ‘
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- We concur in the remarks of Mr. Hight. < The mandates of

the statute prevail over the administrative oxemption

- which has been adopted by the Commission in this case.

And they would seem, on the basis of the evidence that is.
{n the record of the Commission, to require the direction
of -- to prepare an environment;l impact report.

The burden is on one who seeks exemption from
CEQA. And the burden is on one who seeks a gategorieal

exemption. The exemption is a moving target. What may

~have been applicable several years ago is not necessariiy -

applicable today as our knowledge increases and as the -
experience in the field has grown. And the experience

in this case would seem o Vwrrant that there ES‘indeed
a.suhstantialvlikelihoodvof;adverse~changés whichkﬁould

warrant the preparation of an environmental impact report

. here.

' CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: Does either of the

Commissioners kave any quastions of Mr. Right or

Mr. Stevens?

comu:ssioNER DAVIS: 1I'd just -- 7
CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: Commissioner Davis.
COMMISSIONER DAVIS: -- like to make sure I

accurately characterize what the attorneys are teliing us.
In essénce; then, vou're saying éhat new

information poses a greater -- suggests that there's a-
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evaluicion in i1ight of the knowledge +hat’s available and

, 19? :

greater :isk than paéviously thcught by the seismic
tésting.
we should now have the bepefit of an environmental impact-
report. ‘
| MP. STEVENS: That's correct, Mr. Davis.r
COMMISSIONERTDAVIS: Or put another way, we -- »
it's not that there wasn't potential adverse consaquence
to testing in the past. We just weren't aware of ié.

MR. STEVENS: That‘s,rigth CEQA requires

existing. And it wasn't available then, and it is now.

CHA:RP*} "0 rARTHV° Any quest1ons oﬁ Hxss
Kirwan? | ‘
I ﬁ%ve one other point. Miss Kirwan testifled
that there was one appllcant before us who has had a.permit
request before us for scme 16 moﬁ;hs. S
7 MS. KiRWBEN: There are several.
CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: Miss Dedrick, would you

“I'm not aware of -- have we

/

address that point? }
dllatorlly delayed action on these pernits in -- what was-g

said -- what I heard was a clearly unzalr way to the lﬁ

applicants.

EXECUTIVE OFFICER DEDRICK: I'm sure that there

have been no completed or certified permits -- appliea%iané

before us\foxrls months, because that would have ﬁﬁéiﬁ&gﬁ;g?

And rather than grant the categorical exemption, }
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884 and triggered thou permits to perheps ht - o Xnow, ‘ *

undexr 824,

We have had an onqo:mg working ulatim&p and
a‘very positivu and productive one with the industry and 1
-with the fishermen.

in a -- what was a fairly inappropfiateﬂtime frame i£

turned out

for the results of those studies, which we didn't teéeive

until June

- And that's the reason why, you know, the ti@ing

vas such that we didn't know we needed an EIR until very

recently.

Those applications were withdrawn at the request

cf the staff in a timely fashion.

knowledge,

the action

CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY:
us have continued to conduct their testing thronéhéut
this period of tiise? b' -

EXECUTIVE OFFICER DEDRICK:
to have viable permits durlng that period, yes, sir.

CHAIRM;N MC CARTHY:
like to close with any comments?

"MS. KIRWAN:

very brief.

they would be author&zad.

Applications were made last year ‘ C
in tatrdspect, because ve were still waiting 1 ';~ T

and August of this year.

Nc one, to my
who has -- has not been able to cperate until
of the Commission at the last meeting. N

So the applicants before

They have contlnued

Miss Klrwan, would yomn

Yeah, I would. And I'll be very,

On the issue of -~ of whether there is a
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18
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'signifiéant environmental effect. Again, I'm juaﬁ a
lawyer, and there are people here who will speak to you
in very brlef summary as to what the evidence is as to
what, if any, env1ronmental effects have bedh.a£:eemn¢d
from geophy51ca1 surver act1v1ty. i

And we do turn ~- the issue of qhéthér the
categorical exemption applies'ox'ﬁqt doas turn on thid
fdactual questlon. ,

But the focus -~ when you have I»Glﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁi
exemption -~ is not the basic, do you do an EER @r not?
When you have a categorical exemption alresdy set out by

law, you have a different standard. And the standard ves

in,my letter, and I left it out of this statement. Put
it's in 14 Cal Administrative Code Section 15300.2(c}.
 The standard is different when you Bave a
categerical exemption. And that says that a ostegozrical
exemption shall not be used only when there's a

possibility the activity will have a siqnifiaiﬁﬁ ettect

on the environment due to unusual circumstances (sic).

And I won't g through all the details I had in

my 1ettér, but I do think it's very different from the --

. from the looking for the first time at whether you do an

environmental impact report for a new activity. We're

' Vualklng here about something that's been gelng on f@m 40 -

25 | years, and we're asking: Is there an eﬁv1ronmenﬁal effecE@ ;;‘w
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1 Are there unusual circumstances? Is it an adverse effect? Q
2 And the only other point I want to make is .
3 Mr. Morneau's here-- he's much better at it than I am ~- -
4’! to explain what happehed with his permit. BAnd his is A
5k" illustrative, from what I can tell from talking with
6 several of my clients -- and I'm getting their permit
7 history -~ of the repeated requests For withdrawal,
8 resubmittal, withd. )1, resubmittal. And, yes, there's
9 a lot pi:‘ cooperation between the staff and the oil
10 | companies. But the fact remains that nothing has ever
11  been asked of these companies in addition *o what they o
1z originally submitted.
13 50, essentially, it's the same application Vk
4 |  that's been going on for 16 months, and that will be 7 1
15 | before you for about 28 months if you take this action * #‘
16 | today. SR
- . 17 Thank you very much for your attention.
i | 18 CHAIRMAN MC cpnfxx Thank you, Miss Kirwan. | -
3 19 MS. KIRWAN: There are a number of othef peogi»e |
. 20 | who want to speak who were not able to speak at the last
b 2t hearing. ; 2
; 2| CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: Thank yc;u very much. Are |
E. 23 there any of -- applicants, other than the clients that
L 24 | ‘Miss Kirwan rep/;e\sent:.é,,{ who world like to address the
* 25 Commissign? Applica_;:s for permits in the audience.
® . ;
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23 |

, So, Miss Kiran represents all applzcants for
permlts that are here in the audience? |
MS. KIRWAN: No. Gsvernc;, I am litigation
counsel.- And they have a lot of things to say, which is
entirely different with different expertise than --
CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: I -~
MS. KIRWAN: ~-- what I ~-
CHAIRMAN MC’, CARTHY: I -~
MS. KIRWAN: -- have to say.
 CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: ~- aépreciate that. I am
ﬁrying_to be fair to anyone you don't represent to give
them an opﬁortunity to be heard.
So, hearing no response from the aua;ence, then
only the permit applicants that Miss Kirwan represents
are at this hearing. All right.
Miss Klrwan, would you iike ~- Miss Klrwan?
MS. KIRWAN: Sir?
CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: Would yow like to identify
anyone who perhaps did not have an opportunity to testify

at the last hearing?

MS. KIRWAN: I would be happy to. Larry =--

CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: Why don't -- so we cin keep |

this -- why don't you-pick'three that can address‘fhe

points --

MS. KIRWAN: I can't.

PR
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CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: -- raised?

MS. KIRWAN: I can ~- I can tell you, sii, that
we'll speak, as fai as I can tell, less than an hour
total. But people have very different things to_Saé, and
I don't control them. I don't have -- B

CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: I appreciate that.

MS. KIRWAN: But I'm aware of what the kinds of
subjects --

CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: We did have --

MS. KIRWAN: -- they want to talk about. -

CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: -- we did have one hour
of testimony_from each side -~

MS. KIRWAN: No, no.

CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: -- a little over an hour

- from each side while --

MS. XIRWAN: Sir --

CHATRMAN MC ¢ARTHY: -- I was -—- if I may
finish: ™~

MS. KIRWAN: T'm sorry.

CHAIRMEN MC CARTHY: We did have a little over

.one hour from each side while I was present. and then

after I left, we had another hour presented from opponents.
So if we could try to bring fresh points to the Commigsion

today and try not to be repetitive of the testimony we

heard last time -- so, if there are specific witnesaes‘tﬁa%f

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION
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1 ‘will give us something fresh or in fairness to the 1
‘f’ 2 applicants who want to address this the specific pdints £
| 3 the Commission's legal counsel, Mr. Hight, just mentioned ' i
4 or the Attorney General's representative to the - ‘ 4
IP £ | Commission, Mr. Stevens, just menticned, that would be 1 |
B - very useful, too. ~
5 7 » All right. Do you want to -- let's start by %‘)
Iﬁ 8 identifying three people that fit in that description, 1
) then we'll go from there. 4/_;}, )
10 MS. KIRWAN: Larry Toimil from Hard,ing\/«;‘ v
W" . 11 | Lawson, Bob Nazarenus, and Dee Chamberlain.
12 : CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: All right. Would those
| 13 three people icindly come up to the witness stand?
s. 714 Why don't ydu establish your own order of
& * 15 | presentation, gentlemen. Who would like to go first?
16 | MR. CHEMBERLAIN: Governor, Commissioners,
@ .17 I appreciate this o;;portunity to make a statement at thig
4 18 time. | - ‘
" 19 EXECUTIVE OFFICER DEDRICK: Would you identify
?’Q | 20 | yourself and spell &our name for the record?
; 21 | MR. CHAMBERLAIN: Yes. My name is Dillworth
‘ 22 W. Chamberlain. I‘m empioyed by Arco as a s;gnior -
® 23 envircnmental s'c-ience éonsultant - it just changed -- ia
| 24 our environmental protection department. And I've warkeﬂ\ b
25 | for Arco for 14 years. ~ _ 7 B ’4“ /, e
® A
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My formal training is in ichthyology,or the
study of fishes, and marine biology. My work experience

has been mainly in environmental protection. Employment

prior to my prescat position was as a research associate

for 14 years at the Allen Hancock Foundation;, University

26 |

of Southern California, and at the USC School of Medicine.

I hold a Bachelor of Science degree and a Ph.D.
degree in zaolcogy and biology respectively. I'm a membar
of gﬁé Eggs and Larvae Committee, representing the
pet¥oleum industry. I'm also chairman of the American
Petrcleum Institute Fisheries Issues Task Force, invélv&gf
in seismic effects research. )

I've been £ishing, swimming, diving, and
working professionally in California ocean waters for
the past 36 years. | B

In the State Lands Commission general seismic
permit hearing three years ago, I revié§e6~the information
available at that time concerning %he effects ofv'

nonexplosive seismic energy releases on marine organisms.

~ This information said that seismic gear which did not

employ explosives was no significant hazard to fish or
fish eggs at distances greater than one to ten meters.

Fish response to noise is related to the

presence of natural environmental facéqrs as well as to tﬁﬁﬂ

level of noise that they hear, Fish become accustomed to

1

S PN R
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earlier -- an earlier industry funded ‘an in—kind supported

;studies,'and can conclude that these aliso show no

- 3ignificant environmental impact on any marine species,

noise when it is repeated at eime intervals of less thenr
several minutes. “

During the intervening three years, additional
research studies related to the effects of seismic energy
releases on fish have been accomﬁiished, and these include
the U.S. Departmeﬁt of interior Minerals ﬁanageﬁent
Service study on the effects of sound on fish, on fish
dispersal: a joint study by the American Petroleum
Institute and the Califernia Eggs and Larvae Committee on

the effects of seismic energy releases on anchovy. an

study on rock fish dzepersal. This was a pilot smudy
done in cooperation with the commercigl*fishe:men;~ {

And there's been two seismic ene;gy‘reigaie /:
effects studies on fish done by the Institute of Marinex
Bcience -- I mean Marine Research in Bergen, Norway, and
theykaé one addressed the scariné effects of fish and the
other physical effects on eggs and larvae of fish.

I've also critically reviewed these recent

whether of commercial value or not.

Th2 Minerals Management study that I just

mentioned on the effects of sounds from a geo:hysieal surve%

done on fishing success demonetrated no envx-onmental

PETERS SKFORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION
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or physical effects to the rock fish oxposed to seismic |
energy-releases. h A

This~study is referred to as a fish dispersal
study, but fish dispersal was not demcnstréted. In fact,
the Minerals Management news release in June of -- 29th‘of 
this year, said, Bottell Investigators, the contractor :}
for MMs, cautioned'against concluding that fhese»
experiﬁents represented fish behavior during actuai
geophysical surveys. :

‘The most significant finding of this stﬁdy was
that fish went off the bite, would notror coﬁid not take
the baited hooks offered them in 53 percent of the b
exggrimental trials. But even this, I feel, is not
reallyrconclusive. Because zalthough correlated ﬁ
statistically with the presence of seiSmic enérgy
releases, the cause/effect relationship remains unclear.

In other words. because of the many tests -
because many of the tests were not paireé; that is,
control and exposure not done at the same time and thé
same depths, other environmental faétors known to affeét
fish feeding behavior could have <<n iﬁ effect also.

7 These other'factors 1nc1udé changes in water' ,
temperature, the proximity of predators or food items like:
other fish they prey on, a change in barometric pressure

with a change in weather, the time of day, and even previouf
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~ the oppbrtunity to do so. Also, a fish .in a reproductive

~ state is most likely to stop feeding. The possible £

~ addressed in the MMS Study.- 5

Py
s

fishing efforts.

Another major factor that influences feedino
behav1or is the amount of food remalnlng in the stomach
when presented a feedlng opportunity. If feeding has been

recent, fish may not feed again for some time, even'given

effects of these additional environmental parameters A

ignificantly affecting the study results are not -

The anchovy study referred to earlier -- in_

that, the largest effect demonstrated waska reduction
in the survival of two- and four-day-old fish 1érvae, '
This result only came from -- about from exposures to
three’to four times that which an orgamism would normally
be exposed to. The effect was limited to a six- to ten-
foot radius from the energy source. 'Iﬁ older larval fish,
there was no difference between exposed énimals and those
not exposed.

| No pﬁ§sical injury to exposed anchovy eggs --
larvae or adults ~- was seen: Data from this study was.
not put into a model to look at the effects ?f selsmic |
operations on the populations of anchovy, because the

impacts were so small, the Committee thought it more

profitable to put limited funds available to them onto othe* _
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studies with a better chance of producing data.
The Eggs and Larvae Committee, I might mention,

are made up of the fishermen; regulatory agencies, State

and Federal; and the industry.

_ The Norwegian study on scaring effects showed
éhanges in overall fish distribution following six days
of éeismic operations. However, behavior was a variable,
with some species migrating out of the area, others
moving'te the ocean bottom, and some demonstrated no
particular distribution change. |

Exposure of cod eggs, larvae, and fry %o air
and water guns resulted in no detectable damage from a
small air gun. The only effect from a large air gun
apparently was a momentary disorientation of older
juvenile fish with recovery within a few minutes.

These exposﬁres were tested with -- within gix
to fifteen feet of the enegﬁy source.

In the recent suit by the Santa Barbara
COhﬁéizzal Fishermen's Association, the petitianers list

in Section 2, entitled, "The Facts," a number of items

‘and suggest these are substantial evidence that

environmental impacts from seismic testing may take place.
The fact is, none of the iftems listed provide

empirical data or‘any other kind of information showing

that fish are significantly impacted by seismic activities.|

PETERS SHORTHAND REPCRTING CORPORATION
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1 -Further, the report, ';Eggs, Larvae, Science
® 2 Panel Discussions," are personal notes taken during the
3 science ‘pane'l discussion by one of the attendees. They
4 record a portion of the discussions and contain cdmments
L 5 about possible impacts made in the meeting, but no
6 specific data or information or any actual effects
7 resulting from research were given. 7 :
® 8 In the model mentioned in the v:- under "The ;
9 Facts," this was a relatively quick desk-top exercise. :
o 10 “ome things have been said about this model showing ' J
b _ 11 significant impacts to fish, but this is not true. As the : :1
L 12 _author indicates in his title, it was a preliliiinéry model. E
. 13 It's main purpose was to see if a model could be j
l. 14 constructed that might show an impact from the interaci:;i,on .
F 15 ‘between seismic act:.v:.tles and fisheries. | | ,, ﬁi
18 The medel was not developed any further, never ' i‘
£’ 17 finalized. It was never run, and never used to assess 4‘
18 interaction impacts between fish and seisnic (sic). 1In _ : j
] 19 other words, no fishery impact data whatsoever tvias-ever jl
;i’ 20 obtained as an output from this mcdel. ) :
l; 21 } And I'd like to read just a couple of comments . j
22 from the author in his -- from the model itself. 4
23 | *A simulation model is generic 4 ‘/L j
24 | in that it was developed mainly as a 1
25 | tool %that could be used to see if 1

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION
® 3336 BRADSHAW ROAD, SUITE 260 -
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95627
TELEPHONE (916) 3622345




(/e

©

N N DN NN R e wm eb ok md wh as =k e =
M A OON -0 W e N OO 0 s W N L O

W @ N D B W N e

32

seismic cxploration can have an

effect on adult population levels.

1his model cannct be applied to any

particular fish stock."

Then furthers:

"7t must be stressed that this

is not a realistic model."

CHAIRMPN MC CARTHBY: The ¥MS model?

MR. CHAMBERLAIN: Noc. This is ths model théé's,
referred o in the suit, the fishermen's suif, as a
basis for their --

CHATRMAN MC CARTHY. Okay.

| MR. CHAMBERLAIN:4 -- as & partial basis for their

suit.

CHATRMAN MC CARTHY: G- ahead, please.

MR. CHAMBERLAIN: The rzport, "Alterms¥i-:
Fish Protection Technigues. Pneumatic Guns and Rope Hets,”
by the Empire State Electric Energy Source -~ thisz is
ano*her one »f those facts -- reviewed research dones hy
the -- thet body on fish scaring devices. The study
rasults show that a smalx pn;umatic popper similar in
operationrto an air gun caused some fish to move towards
the operating device, while other fish avoided the poppers
and took up positions about 30 feet away. ‘

There was no significantly -- significant
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mortality for zny species of fish tested. ~

No significant impacts on fish were
demonstrated. other than sume species would not appraach
the devices and other species werc attracted by them. -
When the stimulation was removed, the fish returned td
their normal behavior patterns. These devices were not
used in a way similar to the ways -- the way the
geophysical industry uses them ind, therefore, tkis is
not evidence of significant advers~ impact.

Industry -- the oil and gas, gyeophysical
industry has continuously supported seismic effects
research since before the 1984 permit. This suppor.. mas
been with dollars, technical expertise, and in-kind vessgel
help = help with vessels, equipment, and data. And we
have fully supported the neeis and recommendations of the
State Lands Commission,as has been mentioned pefore,
relative to the permit stipulations.

And we'd alsc like to continue this suoport,
such as the BEggs and Larvae Committee stuay on the
dungerness crab and the MMS study. But the timing of ‘these
additional studies should not ke rushed by poiitical need
or hearing schedules to the extent that science is
compromised. The goal should be good science and
supportable results.

In conclusion, my review of the available

N
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are not a problem to fish. This is my honest opinion

34
literature and other information, including scientific ;
studies and government reports, both recent and in the
past, l2ads me to wonclude that there is still no ‘evidence
that geophysical activities significantly affect marine
fish or mammal populations. 2And I don’t ssze the
p¢ sibility of any potential environmental effects at the
level or proposed level of seismic exploration. 2And I
don’t see any significant euvironmental reason to do an
EIR or put limits on nonexplosive energies used.

More beneéit might come from using this money,
from whatever source, to gain more information with
research. I wan't see how anyone else, with the same
scientific information that I've reviewed and is available
to anyone -- and I think you have and your staff have --
can come to any otrer conclusion.

I personally feel, based on inforaationrt

available and my studies, that seismic energy reisases

as a bioingist and is not tempered by who I work for.
If I could, I'd like to rebut a couple of

comments that were made in the hearing on the 23rd of

September, specifically those made by Richard Charter. And,

he said -- he mentioned that fish are more sensitive
to pulsed sound. My response is that all fish are

sensitive to the sounds they heaxr. They're built to
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receive sound. ‘ihey have two different systems that
do so. If you lcok at all the literature available,
you'll find that generally fish response to sound ié
variable. | :

Sounds attract some fish, some species, some
individual fish, or it may repel tﬁem, or they may have no
respanse at all. 7

The startle response, which was mentioned last

week -- last month, exhisited by fish is not an adverse

effect to fish. 1In fact, it's a protective mechanism that

altl fish have, and fish become accustomed to even pulse
sound very cuickly.

A statement was made at that time, alsoc, that
the Minerals Management Service is going to do a study
-of seismic effects on fish, eggs, and larvae. As far

as I know, they're nct going to doc that. The oply study

that they‘re going to do is another one on fish dispersal. |

Another statement was made that the industry
participated in the‘Minerals Management Service f@sg
behavior study. Well, this is not true. If we had, it
wcdid have been more realistic.

Industry did a related study, an earlier one
I mentioned, prior to the MMS study. »And the Minerals
Management Service used this to -- as a model for theirs

to some extent.

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION
333 BRADSHAW ROAD, SUITE 240
SACRAMENTD, CALIFORNA 35827
TELEPHONF (916} 3622315

L




L\

ke

g-q_s.a-l-;-a-n.;_\.z
® @ =~ & n S~ W W = ©

21
2

23
24
25

© 0 N o o & O BN

And the only other statement I'd like to make
is that an EIR does not do new research, but is
constructed with existing information.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: Mr. Chamberiain, let me
make an observation -- .

MR. CHAMBERLAIN: Yes.

CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: =-- if I may. We doa't
doubt your professional qualifications. I don't think
you'd be workirg for the people who have employed you
+£0 utilize your services if you weren't highly gqualified.

I don't doubt for a moment that you'xre a man of
extraordinary impeccable integrity. What we're faced with
herz, sé you understand it, is you are looking at thiee
nonscientists sitting on a State Commission who hear a |
clash of scientific opinion.

There are scientists on the State Lands
Commission staff who have looked at the same study you
just analyzed -- we're not referring to the lawsuit now.
T don't think that was the basis for suggesting that an
environmental impact report was appropriate. As you've
heard, the MMS study was. 2and they have interpreted it
in a different way. The study itself has raised at least
sufficient doubts so that it would trigger the mecharism
of law requiring an environmental impact report. That is

the staff recommendation to us. 2And I fully appreciate
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that you come at the analysis of the MMS study, and
whoever's doing it for the cummercial fishermen come at

an analysis of the MMS study, and other interests as well
tryinc to be honest and analytical, but also obviously
loéking at the study coming from some mind set. That
doesn't mean that there's by design an? kind of dishonesty.
I don't believe that for a minute. I don®t think that
there is.

What we're faced with here and what we're
listening to is to see whether there is any testimony
that so shatters the premise offered by ocur own staff
that tiere simply isn't zny glausibility to believe what
they have just said -- that the MMS study should not
suggest evidence, does not suggest eg;dence that says
cur point of view must be different now than it‘'s been
for several ysars, that an environmental impaci report
is required.

So, I just wanted to be frank with ysﬁ and
tell you what my state of mind is, and tell the other
witnesses, too. My clear irnclination, absent some kind of
evidence to seriously undermine what our own staff is
telling us =-- uniess I hear that evidence, I'm going to

vote for an environmental impact report.

Now, the question is: What's the reasonableness |

of that environmental impact report? Wwhat's the scope of
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that environmental impact report? And how do we do this

in a way thkat's as fair as we can be to the
are trying to earn a livelihood by dcing this tasting?

I just thought I cught to put that on the table
right now as I'm listening to you, sir -- what I've got
here, having listened to some testimony at the last meeting
and heard your testimony. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER Davis: Could I --

CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: Commissioner Davis.

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I just -- I think Leo's
comments are helpful for those people who intend to testify
because “vhey give ycu a frame of reference -in which ==
from which the Commission is operating.

. For a long time, 20 or 30 years, there was
general agreement in the scientific commuinity that
seismic tests and geophysical studies were not harmful.
Now there's at least some studies that suggest to the
contrary. One was funded by the Federal Covernment. ore
in part by thé State Government. And it would mect be
responsible for this Commission to simply ignore those
studies, pretend they didn't ex1st, and act on the basis
of information that motivated our decisions for the past
30 yearSl

So, those of us who come -- those of you who

come before us today have to tell us why we should, in
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effect, ignore these recent studies and not heed the

advice of our attorneys, some of whom suggest that if we -~
both of them suggest that if we do not heed the results

of the studies, we're likely to lose in court and be

forced to condugﬁ‘the envircnmental impact regortVanyw;y,
you know, six months, nine months, a year down the liine.

So, if you could address those general points,
those are the, you know, those are observations that we,
as public officials, have to deal with.

MR. CHAMBERLATIN: I don't think we're asking
anyone to, you know, disregard the studies. I think we
have not. We have addressed them, and I would debate & 2
results with anyone. I mean they're in black and white,
and would like to do so, if possible, sometime if not here.

CHATRMAN MC CARTHY: Thank;you, which éne of
you gentlemen would like to go next?

Yes, sir. Would you idertify yoursel? for the
record?

MR. TOIMIL: Yes. Governor, Commissioners, I'm

Larry Toimil, principal geophysicist with Harding Lawson

Associates.

Harding Lawson Associates is a geotechmical
engineering firm employing approximately 500 engineers and

earth scientists. -We use advanced exploration tools,

‘laboratory testing, and analytical methods to evaluate sail

)
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- in the coastal environment, we deploy our 2guipment from

" . vessels that we charter locally, many of them from local

490

and rock for the design of foundation tyﬁes and to evaluate
the relative performance, safety, and cost of various
designs ——idesign criteria for both onshore and offshemérzl
structures and facilities.

Harding Lawson Asscciates has been actively

engaged in the applicaticn of geophysical methods td;aid

in the design and construction of coastal facilities within _

California since 1972,

Typicaliy, the projects in which geophysigal
techniques are used by our offices include offshore
pipelines and platforms, city and county wastewater outfalls,
material resource evaluations for the evalvation of )
feasibility for sand and gravel beach replenishment
projects, the evaluvation of offshore gecologic hazards,
slbpes stability investigations, offshore fault studies,
and studies related to port and harbor construction and
rehabilitation.

In general, the surveys we perform employ an
array of geophysical systems which include both seismic
reflection and seismic refractiocn. HLA does not maintain

a permanent survey vessel. For the survey work that we do

fishermen or charter services.

Since 1980 -- the period 1985 through 1987, we,
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as a firm, have paid over a hundred and fifty-thousand

dollars in such charter feos related to cur coastal
surQey activities.

Although most of the systems that we commonly
employ for engineering services are below the two
kilohurtz (sic) level as incicated in the recent amendment,

HLA is opposed to the establishment of such a limit.

"HLA's position is based in part on the following

consideraticns.

The two kiio*éﬁié restriction will impéir cur
ability to conduct seLsmlc refxa¢tlon activities and.some
seismic reflection actxvxtles related to englneerlng
studies.

Seismic refraction work oftentimes -- commonly )

is used to determine compressional wave velocities of

sea bed sediments and rock that are data used ih soil

structure interaction analysis with respect to eartchquake

events and ground motion studiés. )

.  Secondly, the adoption of a two kilojoule
‘;éiling would codify an arbitrary limit that is
disassociated from ary data that equates geophyzical
activities with énvironmental harm. We beli;vé that to

set such an arbitrary limit préviges us with considerable

AT
o il
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And thirdly, the restriction imposed by the \<<§>\K )
Commission's actions on the offshore exploraticn'activities [ J
in general will affeIct Harding Lawson's as well as a number
of similar firms:;gﬁture revenues. . ) :
A considerable portion of our geophysical "4
and marine géotechhical investigations has been in support ﬁ
of the o0il industry's activicies offéhore as well as both <
private and municipal communities along tﬁe coastal zone. 7 %
I would like fo quote from a letter that Palagos | - |
Corporation, a firm that is doing similar work in the o
coastél zone -- both for inéistry and for the public |
sector -- addressed to theilemission from Mr. Rapdy t %
Ashiéy, ;he vice-president of Palagos Corpqratidn._ Ahd I f
" quote: e P -
) | “The prbbabie loss of business
/%/ Jis predicted to be greater than 50
f ’perc§nt of our total sales if giophysical
ﬂ | pgigits are not renewed. Si;Eé the C
" predicted loss of fevenues to Palagos - | L
Corporation is so extreme, the impact - =
may be fatal. Even if thz company is C 1
able td survive, we will face wertain ;
layoff, aé mach (sic)}-- of mich of our o 5 35
professional staff, and have no chance ] Jé
of grbwthrwithiﬁ'the market for our ﬁé | 3
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services -- for our services ésic).f'

End qubte. '

Because of the impact of the Commission's
actions on the offshore industry in general, Zau A ia

}particular, I strongly urge the Commission to reconsidaer
;its present course of action.. .

CHAIRMAS MC CARTHY: Thank you very nuch. Any )
questions from the Commissioners? \

One point. You used the wofd "codify" when‘you
talked about the possible or prospective actién of
selecting the two kilojoule level. You may remember at
the last meeting, we had some testimony acainst that.--»I
think it was by Mr. Charter -- that that was arbitrary

and it may well be tbkat-seismic testing below that_leve}}

ST e
e (N e

richt be harmful to certain mariie life. - a =

The ‘truth is we're searching for information
that would give us a better basis on which to try to
understand what harm there might be, if any, on certain
kinds of marine life.

mhis is not codifying anything. This is the

 best buman effort possible based on the information that's

available at this moment. We don't, fraixly, know whethes

‘it should be higher or whether it should be lower at this

=7

Ml

point. We're searching for data to try to comg,rnfkith Sy

N

the answers.
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MR. TOIMIL: Of course.
CHAIRMAN MC CARTHY: All right. You, sir.
Would you identify yourself for the record, rlease.
MR. NAZARENUS: Governor and Commissioners,
my name is Bob Nazarenus. And I'm the general manager-
6f Meridiar Ocean Systems. And we're a small company -
loc;ted in Ventura, California. :
I act oﬁly represent myself and the company,

but its 19 employees and families, along with .

\/approximately 35 other people that we hire on a temporary

basis from time to time,as the need arises, based on the
activities of seismic work done off the coast of |
California.

It’s important that you understand thaé losing
a permit for -- from Meridian's staﬁdpoint is quite
severe. Like was just stated, Palagos, who is g’
competitor of ours, is, in fact -~

(Thereupon Chairman McCarthy exited

the hearing room.) _ _

ACTING CHAIRMAN DAVIS: You can continue.

MR. NAZARENUS: In any event, Meridian is a
ten-year-old company. Like Palagos, the effect of
removing the permits from clients for which we work for
has a very severe, dramatic impact on our ability to

perform work and to exist in the future.
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There is another side to Meridian which most
other companies do not have, in that we also provide
different types of services other than just those te the
petroleum industry. However, the petroleuh industry is,
in effect, cur bread and butter, represerting about 50
percent ~v more of our total revenuss.

And we currently have taken technology from the
oil industry and applied it to other applications, one of
which is tﬁe Naval Civii Engineeriﬁg Laboratory, NCEL;
various other contractors involved with outfalls as did
Palagos. We also do the work in San Francisco. Varigus
cohtractors involved in dredging in the Sacramento Delta.
Leslie Salt. Monterey Bay Aquarium ané the work they‘re
doing. Bechtel at Three Mile Islard and the frustration
and difficulties they're having, we're inleved in helping
them along\ﬁith their projects. National defense. We've
been able to take this technology from the oil induétry
and develop a mine detection system, which cbviously is
rather sensitive with the Persian Gulf situation.

And we supply the United States Navy with mine

detection eguipment on the West Coast. We're involved

“extensively in Australia, Canada, United Kingdom, ard

Israel. And I can cnly assure yéu,that the removal of
permits and the removal-of 50 percent or more of our incgme

will not allow us to continue the types of progress and

PETERS SHORTHAND REIJRTING CORPORATION
3336 BRADSHAW RCAD, SUITE 240
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 35327
TELEPHONE (916) 362-2345




@ o N O A L N -

N NN N b wbh b owd wh b ek b b b

46

supply the types of products that go into there industries.

| Meridian and comparies like Palagos will no
longer be around. I have a great deal of frustration
with, quite frankly, the departure of the Governor at
this moment. And I can tell you why. The Governor, I
suppose, is like commander in chief as I am of my
company. I've been the president of twe other compan.es.
I know what it's like when you have a staff of peopie ‘
that present information to you in a diligent a fashioh,
as effectlvely as they can, with as llttle bias as W
possible. But all of us are human. And I can only tell
you that when I was here last hearing on the 23rd, I think
all of us would agree we heard a very emotional plea from
the fishermen, not very factual.

There was a statement made by -~ I think a

Mr. Breit ~- who read a letter that quoted the fact that
somecne told him that there was few sightings of seals
and fish oIf the coast of Mendocino. And I think, as Dee
has descrlbed here earlier, there’s all kinds of :
pctentlal 1mpacts frcaa a biological standopcint that could .
cause that to occur, that obviously the conc1u51on that was
drawn was it was seismic activity that caused that with no
conclusion, no base of fa ct It's hearsay. Aand I know
when I sit ip the chair and YOﬁ hear people give you

input and you have to make a decision -- yocu try to make
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the best decision you can. And I hope that's what the
Commission is doing, because it has a dramatic.impactvon
amy life and my employees; and the welders, thé carpenters,
the vessels we hire; Palago~, a competitor. Compeﬁitioni
is good. ‘

We've heard testimony from your own artorneys,
which they deduced that there has been or appears to be
some  substantial impact. And the word "may" was used ana
so forth. And it is true that, if you wili, our side of
the_afgument, Dee has indicated that, in fact, he's found
evidenve that, in fact, there is nc significant impact.

211 I know is we've been in this business for
ten yesars. I know people that have been in this business
for 40 years. I just £ind it peculiar why the fishermen
are aliowed to survive and Palagos and Meridian are not.
And I think we have to set aside the emotional impact
of this issue and look at the legal issue. Those péople
who sal: down and figured out a way to function dvring a
nonemoﬁional time (sic). Just to give you an analogy of
what I'm trying #5 say, so it's clearer, I'm involved at

this moment in preparing a flve—year strategy for

'Merxdlan. And I prepare, =25 a part of that, a contlngency

program for things that might happen that will have an

,;adverse ‘impact on my business.

And I 51t down w1th my managers, as you would
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Sit down with your staff, and you ahalyze in a very clear,
comfortable, and emotional time (sic) what you would do
if those events occurred. When they, in fact, cccur,
you're caﬁght up in the emotion of having to fire people.
Very difficult to do. You procrastinate. Before you know
it, you lose your business. ) '

And sc, you make decisions when itfs a
nonemotional time. And I think testimony by B.J. is an
indication that at some time prior, people sat down and
set out some guidelines to berfollowed in case situations
like this occurred.

And I think we‘re in the emotioril time and
we're hearing emocional testimony. I suppose you would
classify mine as emotional. Let's not get caught up
in the emoticnal. Let's iook at what people witﬁ calmer
minds had to say about what to do with the problem like
it is.

And I'd like to find a way in which all of us
can work together. We have for 40 years. And I know
there are some exceptions in the sense that we are
requiéid to put out a fisheries advisory whenever we go
out to do work. Ironicallv enough and funny enough, when
we go out there after giving a 15-day notice, our area is
filled with nets, traps, buoys floating all over the placg.

boats all over the place. That's not coincidental. And 1
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find it interesting that the oil industry has supplied °
$600,000 in order to provide studies to help you make

decisions. I haven't yet heard -- there may have been

*fpme investment made by the Fishermen's Asscciatioﬁw‘bﬁi

I don't know if éhere has or hasn't.

And I know that cne of the gentlemen here
indicated that it behooves the oil industry to come up with
the solution, since~they're the ones requesting the '
permits. §. be it. A

But I still, as a rational individuai, when I've
read these reports, have found no indication of
supstantial impact on fish, larvae, salmon, whatever they.
may be. )

And I guess I'd implore you to consider the
fact that when you arbitrarily pull back permits for a per-
iod of time, it has a significant,negative impact on my '
business and my people.

And I'¢ like to suggest that if we're not suré
yet what the right decision is, let's not kill one
industry. Let's find out with a few more tests to find
out if there is a significant impact. Let'g get the people
from -- the experts; if you will, from the fishermen as
well as from the petroleum companies together to perform

the tests -- not an environmental impact study which stops

-~ everythin:. We've performed these other tests while we've
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continued to operate.

I think there®s got to be a solution that is not
so severe a3 to absolutely eiiminate exploration, whi;%"
elininates Meridian and Palagos. There's a way to
cooperate. And one of the sﬂégestibns that was suggested .
by the gentleman who represented the fishing associction
was that we could divide up the calendar year.

Unfortunately, h: suggested that we funcffon inQﬁ
becember, January, and February. Th§t's a pretty tough

time to be on & vessel out there b¢>/ing around on the

water in 12-foot seas trying to take seismic information

or to do anything, for that matter, except hang over the
side. ‘

And that's why the fisherméﬁ“dgm't want to be

_out there. However, if, in fact, it's a necessity for us

to give.? permit (sicj a 15-days' notice, and that's notﬁ
sufficient enough time for the fishermen to fish prior to
us geing out there, then make it 35 days. Let them fish
in that avea, and then we'll go out and do our work.
There's been no proof, no substantial proof

that when they go back out there after we've been there,

that they can't catch fish. Well, I guesis my point is that,

we need to devise a way that all of us can work together

. t

without anyone going out of business. And X mean this -

“sizcerely. Thank you.

L R N L P
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ACTING CHATRMAN DAVIS: Let me just respond to
4 couple points you made. First of all, the Lieutenant
Governor, like alil of us,/is on a number of boards and

commissions and can't be sverywhere at once,iigjm “n more

than 40 boards. I was not at the September 23rd meeting.

It'; just a fact of life for statgwidé public offigialé.
So, in terms of all of our reliance on staff in addition
to personal staff, the Lands Commission itself provides
us with expert advice. And it is their recommend§titn
that, in light of ﬁ;; studies, that an environmental
impzct report is appropriate. |

And maybe in a perfect world nothing vzald
change. I know I'm always frustrated everytime I learn

that something I was told was good for me to eat is no

longer good for me. And I say, “How can that be?"

But, you know, one of the challenges of life is
to cope with change. And we're trying as best we can to
cope with it in a way that will minimize adverse impact,
but still allow us to discharge our respéﬂsibility»ander
the Public Rescurces Code. ‘ M

I know that doesn't totally respond to your
frustration and the consequences of this likely dgcision,
but it's the best response I can give §ou aé this time.

Who is the next witness? J | |

MS. KIRWAN: The only other people I'm awaryof
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ff who would like to speak are first, Tom Morneau, then _é

2 very, very short remarks from John Laker, Ebert Baxter, f

; 3 and Larry Bowles. ;
E 4 MB. MORNEAU:  Chairman Gray, Commissioners, S
@Q 5 my name is Tom Morneau. I'm an attorney employeéﬁby ) ';
? P Exxon. One of my clients with Exxon is the gedphysical h ;
E. 7 operations group that's respcnsible for offshore %
L 8 | geophysical operations, onshore and offshore Alaska. and i
] Py offshore California. ' .E
19 As Miss Kirwan indicated earlier, I'd like to i

ﬁ! 11 take a few minutes with you and review the history of the }i
i 12 permit applications that vou're considerihg today and ’j
13 alsc to comment. if I might, on the. inapproprizteness »é

E

of a decision to deny the permits and to prepare an EIR.

e

%5 Exxon's original permit application that you're

{
T

18 considering today was submitted on May 27th, 1986. The

|

%

ﬁ. 17 reason for that time period was that under the CEQA Act,

: 18 if you make a determination that an EIR is required, you

; 19 have a year to do that. _we'vermade the application in such
h' 20 time that there would be no interruption to activities,

' 21 because the current permit was at that time running

b 22 | until I believe May 28th of this year. And so, it was -
h! 23 | done approximately one year beforehand.

f 24 About six and a half months after that initial

’ 25 filing by Exxon, the staff came to Exxon -- the Commissiég,
@
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acting through its staff, came to Exxon and requested.that
we agree to a one-time 90-day exreption (sic) so that o
they could complete their review of the permit.

Exxon, in an attempt to cooperate; which we
wanted to do -~ and we always thought the staff worked well
with the industry ai.d tried to be very fair in its
dealings with us. So we agreed to that. :

Three months 1ater in February -- I believe it
the Commission that they were unable to complete their 7
review of the permit; that they were then conducting an
environmental review of the entire seismic permit program,
and that we had an opportunity to withdraw. our permit a.d
resubmit it and/or the alternative was to face a denial of
the permit.

That takes us through Februa.'y. We again agreed
to resubmit the permiz. And I belisve the effective date
was approximately February 28th or March 1, that time
frame.

Then in Maf, we were advised that the
recommendation would be to prepare a new neéative
declaratien. But instead in the May hearing, the decision
was made to extend the current permit another four monthe
till September 28th.

That brings us up to our September 23rd hearing,

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION
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at which time we learned that the permits were actually
dexii»\\\ed without an opportunity for many of us applicants
to present our testimony.

On September 25th again, we were advised that

; our permits were deemed resubmitted and complete as they

were back in February. And the pcint to make here is
that at » time from the original filing back in May of
1986 to fﬁe current date, have we been asked for any
additional information that was not already provided ixm
our original application. o
This finally brings us to cur hearing,todag.
The pufpose of that chronology is to highlight for you
Commissioners the fact that a denial of the permits at
this time is basically unfair, especially in light of the
followiang reasons. . '
We've worked with the Commission throughout this
entire 16~-month period. We've done everyﬁhing thac is
required of us under the statute and under the |
regulations for the State Lands Commission to obtain a
pexrmit. Addigicnally, as I indicated, we've keen advised
several times that a permit would issue.
% pelieve in the February letter that we
raceived,:it indicated that they ~- the Commission was
goiang -~ ¢r the recommendation would be to the cOmﬁission

that -- permits should issue in March. .

54
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Then in May, of course, we were advised that

a new negative declaration wculd ccme out and then, again,f\

the permits would 1ssue.

Finally, on September 23rd, we were really
surprised to learn that the permits were toc be denied and
that an EIR would be requlred.

I'm not trving to indicate that anfone'has‘acted
u*reasonable here. What I'm tryin; to tell the Commission
is that we have a period where we have worked with the
Commission and GOne everything that is required of us.

And when you take that and put it in thevlight of hacé a
decision been made 15 months ago to conduct an EIR, as is
required by CEQA, that EIR could have already been
completed. And that was our thinking when we submitted our
permit application. »

If worse comes to worse and Ah EIR had to be
done back then, it could have been completed by now
without any interruption toMactivities; Now we face a
substantial interrupticn to our operatiofis, unless the
Commission overturns their September 23rd decision.

Additionally, I think a decision to deny the

‘permit is inappropriate. The reasons for this are three:

First, the tim.ag or the time to make a decision to
conduct an EIR, as Miss Kirwan indicated earlier, is 30

days after a permit is deemed complete. Second, I know

.
T T WAV D
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there's a disagreement amongs: the lawyers here. Our
position is clearly that CEQA, as a statﬁte, the
regulations that were promulgated under CEQA, and the
State Lands Commission's requlations state that a
categorical exemption calls for the permits to be issued.

The Commission does not have thatiéhoice of
conducting an EIR until those regulations are overturncd,
unless they can kring themselves under the exceptions.
And it's our strong belief that they c;ﬁnot.

Finally, and I think most importantly, we‘have
to keep in mind that this ic a dramatic, a hundred-eighty
degree, in fact, change in direction from the Commission's
earlier decisions over the last few years to issue these
permits. And in our =-- from our view, it's without any
new evidence to indicate tﬁéé our operaticns are causing
a2 significant impact.

We really helieve that what is hagpenihd&hefa

Py

is that there is a reaction to conjécture. There's ==
zllegations from a smail faction of the fishingainduétry
and, as a result of that, a decisior is being pushed upon
the Commission to prepare an EXR. I personally believe
that this smsll faction within the/%ishing industry is not
willing to work with the seismic industry to resolve what,
in our oéinion, is mothing more tharn a multiple-use

conflict.
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1 Given that we are faced with a multiple-use

2 conflict and that we don't believe there's any new or

3 old information to show a sf{fnificant impact on tl;e

4 environment, I respectfully request that you _aissue the

5 permits. B )
'F 3 That completes my actual comments, but,I've got -¢
* 7 this iz not my place, but I'm going to make a suggestion.
%‘ s I heard earlier Gecvernor McCarthy make the statemen\b, "I'm ,
9 faced with a situation whcre my staff =ad my experﬁé and {
: 10 my scientists are te.llyj.ag me that we have a disagreement, " ‘
f‘ 11 | that there is the potential for a significant impact." |
; 12 | Our experts, as you heard, Mr. Dee Chamberlaiﬁ; ]

13 | are telling you that there is no significant impact. ‘

Periodically, being a nonscvientist myself, when I'm faced

—— vﬁwv
wh
o

15 with that type of situation, I say, "Wait a second.
: 18 There's only one way to resolve this. We're in a
E’ 17 | confrontation mode here. Let's step back an® avcid that
t; 18 H confrontation mode. Let’s pull those scientists together,
| 19 and I want to hear both sides from these people. I want
?'. 20 to hear it up front."
21 AnG then, once I've heard it, if I still --
F 22 you know, I will know myself, after hearing both ‘sid«es of
p 23 the argument and the interaction, the rebuttal, if you

24 would, back and forth, I'll know what decision to make.

25 | or at least I'll have made it on the best possible
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information.

I think that this sitﬁation has some potential
for that type of a method. And I'd like to suggest éﬁ;t
for your consideration. Thank you for hearing me today.

ACTING CHAIRMAN DAVIS: Robert, do you or Claire
yant to respond to any of tla comments about the deiay
‘in,the perni* or the -- his interpretation of t»s
governing statute?

EXECUTIVE OFFICER DEDRICK: Yeah, I'd speak to

the program, Mr. Chairman. As I've said earlier,

‘ the process has taken a whlle, because there have been a

suhstantlal number of changes in knowledge during the
rerioed.

Three and a half yeats ago, when the Commission
authorized renewal of the program, it at that time

authorized the studies, because -~ though there was a

*lot of cdnjecture, even more than you've héard in this

series of hearings -- thers was absolutely no evidence.
Those studies were thought -~ we tnought that

those studies would take one to two years, which was a

reasonable expectiation at the time. At the -~ a year

ago, the perioa that Mr. Morneau refers to when ﬁ;nsays an

EIR should have been ordered, we did not hava any

different data than we had;hau two gears prior to that.”

But in early last -~ early this year, we began
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~ anything other than an EIR. .

to hear from the peorie who were c@nﬁucting the sta&i@$3,~
without having seen the studies, that they ware going to
come up with results that were <~ indicdted potential -
damage, '

_ At that time, Mark Meier, att&rney.oh our staff,
met with the geophyéicgl industry and told them that if
those ré?@lts came through as thgy were expected to come
through -~ and this would have been in probably around May
or June -- that staff -- in March? -- in March. That

staff, and I'm speaking now of legal staff, would recommendt-

wouil feel that an RIR ptobably had to be done. -
The reason we Qﬁkza you for an extension to the

prbgram in May, as you recall, was because we were told

that the results of those tvo studies.which we had waited ﬁ :

for for over a year,'would be Eoming out;duriné the
summer . 7 '

In fact, the MMS study was released in about
June, and the other study -- the Committee study in, as
I recall, August. When those results wera recéiveqsb§

the Commission staff, it became apparent == £0-US8 #t any

rate -- that the legal requxrements could not be met with ﬁ

The geophysical xndustry7 as they've 5ndie;te&,\\

worked very closely with us and we with them, asJ;~3;5&- :

"with the fishermen, over a long p(plod. At r> time hiﬁi iﬂ%a

e

i€
i3 e
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ever misled tnem on these issues.

T

They have always bgun:
aware that this is the case.

‘ It's scmewhat ironic that they’re pleading
delay in permitting when your oﬁly alternative priar‘to
this time would have been to deny those permits. Our
efforts were to try to keep a working progtam going until
we were sure what the legal requirements woula be; We

now feel those legal requirements have forced us into

. this pos;tlon.

A«& I think ~- you want COmment on that,

Mr. Chairman? Mr. Hight shovld do that.

MR. HIGHT: Mr: Chairmen, I think that the

essence of the argument is whe: the evidence ~-- when the
evidence of the gtudies was made publmc, that cgyétalzze&»

our worst fear, if you will, And at ﬁhat 901n\, we sav

- /

little option. - -

ACTING CHATRMAN DAVIS: I assume during this

period ef delay the geaphysxcal testing continued? -
MR. HIGHT: That s correct.

M®. MORNEAU: Yes.

-l
/

ACTING CHAIEMAN DAVIS: 8o, if we had —-

MR. MORNEAU: No, we were not trying to imply -

that at any time we were shut down Quring this time peripd.} .

You know, more than --

~ ACTING CHAIRMAN DAVIS:

No, but I just want tp.
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